
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF MISSISSIPPI

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

v. CRIMINAL NO.  3:07cr194

JAMES DRAPER

GOVERNMENT’S POSITION ON SENTENCING FACTORS 

Comes now, the United States of America, by and through the United States Attorney for

the Northern District of Mississippi, and files this position on sentencing factors.  In support

thereof the United States would show unto the Court the following:

James Draper was found guilty at trial for aiding and abetting the interstate transportation

of moneys obtained by fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. 2314,  and money laundering, in violation

of 18 U.S.C. 1956.  Draper testified that he had earnestly attempted to purchase the equipment at

issue and therefore had not participated in the scheme to obtain $187,000 from the State of

Mississippi through false and fraudulent pretenses.  Draper also testified that the confession

given to Special Agent Sypniewski, FBI, was false and was the product of coercion.  

At paragraphs 18, 27 and 33, the presentence report fails to acknowledge the defendant’s

attempts to obstruct justice.  §3C1.1, United States Sentencing Guidelines Manual, mandates and

increase of two offense levels for “Obstructing or Impeding the Administration of Justice.” 

Application note 4 provides examples of covered conduct.  Subsections (b) and (f) relate to

perjury under oath and providing false information to a judge.  The evidence at trial established

that Draper gave three statements to the FBI, two of which were blatantly false.  The third

statement and his testimony before the grand jury established that he had, in fact, participated in

a scheme with Richard Hall to defraud the State of Mississippi and laundered the proceeds of
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that scheme.  However, at trial Draper recanted his signed admission and testified under oath that

he had earnestly attempted to purchase equipment listed on the false invoice, that he was owed

the $20,000 for expenses related to that purchase and that the third statement given to the FBI

was fabricated and coerced by the agent.  The jury, through it’s verdicts of guilty, obviously

found Draper’s testimony to be false.

In the application of this section, the sentencing court should “address each element of

the alleged perjury in a separate and clear finding.”  United States v. Dunnigan, 507 U.S. 87

(1993).  Perjury occurs when “[a] witness testifying under oath or affirmation .... gives false

testimony concerning a material matter with the willful intent to provide false testimony, rather

than as a result of confusion, mistake or faulty memory.”   A matter is “material” if it is

“designed to substantially affect the outcome of the case.” Id. 

James Draper’s testimony was far from a mere denial of guilt.  From the evidence

adduced at trial and from the verdict of the jury, Draper’s testimony was materially false. 

Richard Hall testified that he and Draper were well aware that the equipment listed on the

invoice to obtain the money was not for sale.  He also testified that Draper was well aware of the

scheme and knowingly participated in it.  Although he denied the above in his first and second

statements to the FBI, in his third statement and in his testimony before the grand jury he

acknowledged his active participation in the scheme.  However, at trial Draper, in great detail,

recanted those statements.  He testified that if there was any scheme to defraud that Richard Hall

was the only knowing participant.  Although the evidence established that he had received a

copy of the bogus invoice on his defunct company’s letter head, he denied such.  He stated that

he had made numerous trips to the company and believed that he could purchase the equipment. 

However, the evidence established that Draper knew well and good that the equipment had not
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been purchased when the invoice was submitted or when he received and deposited the check. 

Finally, Draper testified that Special Agent Sypniewski fabricated his third statement and

coerced his signature thereon with threats.  

Although there was significant documentary evidence and testimony establishing the

defendant’s guilty, the government’s case was significantly bolstered by his statements and

grand jury testimony.  Without the statements, Draper’s defense that it was Hall and not he who

had defrauded the State could have been credible.  Thus, Draper’s testimony at trial was

designed to substantially affect the outcome of his trial in that, if believed, would most likely

result in a verdict of not guilty.

In United States v. Cabral-Castillo, 35 F.3d 182 (5th Cir. 1994), the Fifth Circuit Court of

Appeals affirmed the application of the above enhancement on virtually identical facts.  At trial,

the defendant testified that he was not a participant in a conspiracy to distribute controlled

substances.  The defendant also testified that his confession to federal agents was coerced.  The

Court of Appeals found, under those circumstances, that the district court had properly applied

the two level enhancement pursuant to § 3C1.1.

For the above reasons, the United States respectfully requests that the Court apply the

above described enhancement to the defendant’s offense level.

Respectfully submitted,

JIM M. GREENLEE
United States Attorney
MS BAR NO. 5001

By: /s/ William C. Lamar
WILLIAM C. LAMAR
Assistant United States Attorney
MS BAR NO. 8479
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, William C. Lamar,  certify that I electronically filed the foregoing GOVERNMENT’S

POSITION ON SENTENCING FACTORS with the Clerk of the Court using the ECF system

which sent notification of such filing to the following:

Kenneth H.Coghlan     Kcoghlan@rayburnlaw.com, ggarrett@rayburnlaw.com

and I hereby certify that I have mailed by United States Postal Service the document to the

following non-ECF participants: None

This the 21st day of October, 2008.

/s/ William C. Lamar                   
WILLIAM C. LAMAR
Assistant United States Attorney
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